
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  October 23, 2024 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting 

is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and 
is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant 
to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board 
also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 
Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. 
 

(b) The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be attending the Polk County Local Public Safety Coordinating 
Council meeting on November 4, 2024 at 12:00 p.m., located at 850 Main St., Dallas, OR 97338. 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM October 16, 2024   

  6.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7.  POLK COUNTY ORDINANCE 24-06 – Morgan Smith 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

a) Polk County Order No. 24-14, Imposing Speed Restrictions on Andy Riggs Rd 
       (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 

 
b) Polk County Contract No. 24-171, Northwest Human Services 

(Rosana Warren Rivera, Behavioral Health) 
  

 

                                         

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
    
 
    
 

    
  



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

   POLK COUNTY PUBLIC MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

GUIDELINE FOR CITIZENS 
***************************** 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

Regular meetings of the Polk County Board of Commissioners convene at 9 a.m. each Wednesday morning. Any 
person wishing to bring a matter before the Board at one of these meetings may do so by mailing or delivering 
written notice, concisely describing the nature of the item, to the Board of Commissioners, Polk County Courthouse, 
Dallas, Oregon 97338, by noon on the preceding Thursday. Unless otherwise announced, meetings are held in the 
Main Conference Room of the Courthouse. 

***************************** 

APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS 

 

The Board sets aside a time at each regular meeting for comment by the public on subjects not appearing on the 
Agenda. Individuals may come forward and make any statement they wish, but not to exceed three (3) minutes in 
length, except as is required to give concise answers to questions from Board members. If the subject will require 
a lengthier presentation, or merits inclusion as an item on the Agenda of a future meeting, the Board shall schedule 
it accordingly. 

***************************** 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT 

Land Use 
 
1. Chairman opens hearing. 
 a. Reading of hearing request or appeal statement. 
 b. Call for abstentions (ex parte contact or conflict of interest). 
2. County staff presents background, summary and its recommendation (20-minute limit). 
3. Applicant (Appellant) presents his/her case (15-minute limit). 
4.  Public testimony. Note that all testimony and evidence must be directed toward the applicable factual and 

legal criteria as identified in the record and/or during this hearing. Do not repeat previous testimony. Simply 
note for the record that you are in agreement with that earlier testimony. Your time to present testimony is 
limited. FAILURE TO RAISE AN ISSUE IN THIS HEARING, IN PERSON OR BY LETTER, OR FAILURE 
TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPECIFICITY TO AFFORD THE BOARD AN OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND 
TO THE ISSUE MAY PRECLUDE LATER APPEAL TO LUBA ON THAT ISSUE. 

 a. Individuals in favor of the application or appeal. 
 b. Individuals against the application or appeal. At the discretion of the Chairman, an attorney, 

consultant, or other designated representative of two or more individuals may be allowed the 
combined time for each represented individual who does not speak, not to exceed 20 minutes. The 
Chairman may require proof of designation. 

5. Rebuttal by Applicant (Appellant) (10-minute limit). 
6. Questions from Board (discussion limited to individuals questioned by the Board).  
 a. Staff. 
 b. Applicant (Appellant). 
 c. Individuals testifying. 
7. Chairman closes hearing and announces closing of Record. 
8. Chairman announces date for deliberation and decision. 
9. The Board's decision is deemed the final decision of Polk County. It may be appealed to LUBA within 21 

days of its issuance in written form. The address and phone number of LUBA may be obtained from the Polk 
County Community Development Department and will also appear on the Notice of Decision which will be 
mailed to all persons who testify, submit comments, or print their name and address on the hearing 
attendance sheet at the back of the hearing room. 

 

 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES October 16, 2024  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Gordon were present. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be attending the Polk County Local Public Safety 
Coordinating Council meeting on November 4, 2024 at 12:00 p.m., located at 850 Main St., Dallas, 
OR 97338. 
 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 

Penny Ryan and Chris Golley provided public comment stated that they are representing the 
Polk County Republican Central Committee and they wanted to share with the Board that on 
February 8th, 2024, the Polk County Republican Central Committee unanimously approved the 
adoption of a resolution to restore in person observation of elections in Polk County, Oregon. 
They have Nicole Pineda a hand out to share with the Board and staff. 

 
Ronny Daniels provided public comment in regards to sharing his passion for being a republican 
and he wanted to ask that the Board would hold to their duties as Commissioners. 

 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF October 9, 2024 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF October 9, 2024. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 



October 16, 2024 
Page 2 

 

  

 

 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

 
 

 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Pope adjourned the meeting 
at 9:06 a.m.  
 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Craig Pope, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: October 23, 2024 

a) Polk County Contract No. 24-168 (Amendment 2 to 17-107), US Dept of Transportation, 
Federal Highway Administration, Western Federal Land 
(Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 1 
FOR THE COUNTY OF POLK, STATE OF OREGON 2 

3 
4 

In the Matter of Adopting an Ordinance for the ) 5 
Polk County Sheriff’s Office to Provide Fair  ) 6 
And Efficient Guidelines for Tows  ) 7 

) 8 
) 9 

10 
 ORDINANCE NO. 24-06 11 

12 
WHEREAS, the Polk County Sheriff’s Office has adopted Policy 502, which is attached 13 

as Exhibit A to this ordinance, a policy outlining the process and procedure for towing vehicles. 14 
15 

THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 16 
17 

Section 1. Enactment.  The Polk County Sheriff’s Office policy 502 attached as Exhibit A 18 
and incorporated into this ordinance is hereby adopted as the Polk County tow policy. 19 

20 
Section 2. Severability.  Should any section or portion of this ordinance be held unlawful or 21 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall apply only to the 22 
specific section, or portion thereof, directly specified in the decision.  All other sections or 23 
portions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 24 

25 
26 

Dated this 23rd day of October, 2024 at Dallas, Oregon. 27 
28 
29 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 30 
31 
32 ________________________________ 
33 Craig A. Pope, Chair 
34 
35 
36 

________________________________ 

37 
Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 

38 
39 
40 

________________________________ 

41 

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 

42 

Approved as to Form: 

43 
44 
45 

_________________________ 

46 

County Counsel 

47 
48 

First Reading: _________________________ 

Second Reading: ________________________ 

Recording Secretary: ___________________



Policy

502
Polk County Sheriff's Office

PCSO Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/20, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Polk County Sheriff's Office

Vehicle Towing - 1

Vehicle Towing
502.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
This policy provides guidance related to vehicle towing. Nothing in this policy shall require a
member of this office to tow a vehicle.

502.2   TOWING SERVICES
The Polk County Sheriff's Office maintains contracts with qualified tow companies and utilizes the
non-preference tow list:

(a) When a vehicle is being held as evidence in connection with an investigation

(b) When it is otherwise necessary to impound a motor vehicle. This would include
situations involving the recovery of stolen or abandoned vehicles, and the removal
from the streets of vehicles obstructing traffic in violation of state or local regulations

(c) When the need arises for a sheriff’s office vehicle to be towed.

502.2.1   NON-PREFERENCE TOW SERVICES
Upon proper application, the Office may approve qualified towing services to be called when a
citizen needs towing but has no preference as to which service to call.

Tow contractors agree to arrive within 30 minutes of being dispatched. However, there are times
when the ability to do so is outside of their control. It is suggested that deputies call to check the
time of actual dispatch and /or the estimated time of arrival before deciding to have another tow
company dispatched.

Any complaint alleging a violation of the agreement or other misconduct by a non-preference
operator shall be referred to the sergeant assigned to tow contracts for investigation. The office
may periodically review the performance of each authorized non-preference operator.

The Office will assist citizens by calling any towing company desired. If the citizen has no
preference and requests towing service, one of the authorized firms shall be called in rotation.

All deputies are specifically prohibited from directly or indirectly soliciting for or recommending
any garage or tow service.

502.3   IMPOUND AT ARREST SCENES
Whenever a person in charge or in control of a vehicle is arrested, it is the policy of this office to
provide reasonable safekeeping by leaving the vehicle secured and lawfully parked at the scene
unless the arrested party requests to arrange for someone to pick it up or they request the vehicle
be towed at their expense. Deputies should allow a reasonable amount of time for a person to
arrive to retrieve the vehicle.

While the Oregon Revised Statutes may authorize the impoundment of a vehicle for issues such
as driving with a suspended or revoked license (ORS 809.720), impounds are only authorized if,

EXHIBIT A



Polk County Sheriff's Office
PCSO Policy Manual

Vehicle Towing

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/20, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Polk County Sheriff's Office

Vehicle Towing - 2

in such cases, leaving the vehicle would create a hazard or obstruction. An exception is for tows
due to not having insurance which is authorized by statute and policy.

In all such cases where a vehicle remains at the scene, the handling employee shall inform the
arrestee and note in the report that the Office will not be responsible for theft or damages.

502.4   IMPOUNDS RELATED TO CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS
Vehicles that are needed for the furtherance of an investigation or prosecution of a case or are
otherwise appropriate for seizure under ORS 133.535 may be appropriate for impound and storage
as evidence. Generally a warrant to seize a vehicle is required for impound to take place. The time
needed to apply for a warrant to search a vehicle and not having enough personnel to monitor the
vehicle in place is not, in and of itself, a reason to tow and store the vehicle without a warrant. That
being the case, deputies should consider if both the seizure and the search should occur where
the vehicle is located if it is thought retention will no longer be necessary once complete and it
can be done safely.

State law requires the impounding deputy to take reasonable steps to protect against loss or
damage to impounded vehicles and any contents that may have been taken as evidence (ORS
133.537).

Deputies should make reasonable efforts to return a recovered stolen vehicle to its owner rather
than store it, so long as the vehicle is not needed for evidence. If a recovered stolen vehicle
is towed, the deputy shall share the owner’s contact information, including the person’s home
address and telephone number, with the towing service that assumes control of the vehicle (ORS
98.857). Deputies unable to contact an owner while at the scene should make reasonable efforts
to reach them at a later time to advise them of the recovery.

502.5   VEHICLE INVENTORIES
The contents of all impounded vehicles shall be inventoried in accordance with the following
procedure:

(a) An inventory of personal property and the contents of open containers will be
conducted throughout the passenger and engine compartments of the vehicle
including, but not limited to, the glove box, other accessible areas under or within
the dashboard area, any pockets in the doors or in the back of the front seat, in any
console between the seats, under any floor mats and under the seats.

(b) In addition to the passenger and engine compartments as described above, an
inventory of personal property and the contents of open containers will also be
conducted in the following locations:

EXHIBIT A



Polk County Sheriff's Office
PCSO Policy Manual

Vehicle Towing

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/20, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Polk County Sheriff's Office

Vehicle Towing - 3

1. Any other type of unlocked compartments that are a part of the vehicle including,
but not limited to, unlocked glove compartments, unlocked vehicle trunks and
unlocked car top containers.

2. Any locked compartments including, but not limited to, locked glove
compartments, locked vehicle trunks, locked hatchbacks and locked car-top
containers, provided the keys are available and are to be released with the
vehicle to the third-party towing company or an unlocking mechanism for such
compartment is available within the vehicle.

(c) Closed containers located either within the vehicle or any of the vehicle’s
compartments will not be opened for inventory purposes except for the following, which
shall be opened for inventory: wallets, purses, coin purses, fanny packs, personal
organizers, briefcases or other closed containers designed for carrying money or small
valuables, or closed containers which are designed for hazardous materials.

(d) Other closed containers shall be opened and inventoried if the owner acknowledges
they contain cash in excess of $10, valuables or a hazardous material.

(e) The inventory is not a search for evidence of a crime, however, deputies shall seize
evidence or contraband located during the inventory. Items should be scrutinized to
the extent necessary to complete the inventory.

(f) Tow truck operators are to receive a copy of the tow report.

These inventory procedures are for the purpose of protecting an owner's property while in sheriff's
custody, to provide for the safety of deputies, and to protect the Office against fraudulent claims
of lost, stolen, or damaged property.

502.6   VEHICLE SEARCHES
Case law regarding search and seizure is ever changing and frequently subject to interpretation
under the varying facts of each situation. Vehicle searches should be handled according to current
training and a deputy’s familiarity with relevant case law. Generally, a search warrant should be
sought prior to conducting a search of a vehicle.

Because circumstances under which a warrantless search of a vehicle might be permissible are
very limited, and because vehicle searches are subject to many restrictions, deputies should,
whenever possible, seek supervisory approval before conducting a warrantless search of a
vehicle.

502.7   SECURITY OF VEHICLES AND PROPERTY
After a thorough inventory of the vehicle has been completed and all contraband, evidence and
weapons have been removed the deputy should make reasonable accommodations to permit a
driver or owner to retrieve small items of value or personal need (e.g., cash, jewelry, cell phone,
prescriptions).

EXHIBIT A



Polk County Sheriff's Office
PCSO Policy Manual

Vehicle Towing

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/20, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Polk County Sheriff's Office

Vehicle Towing - 4

If a search of a vehicle leaves the vehicle or any property contained therein vulnerable to
unauthorized entry, theft or damage, search personnel shall take such steps as are reasonably
necessary to secure and/or preserve the vehicle or property from such hazards.

502.8   RELEASE CRITERIA
A vehicle impounded under this section shall be released to a person entitled to lawful possession
of the vehicle upon compliance with the following:

(a) Proof that a person with valid driving privileges will be operating the vehicle.

(b) Proof of compliance with financial responsibility requirements for the vehicle.

(c) Payment of the Polk County Sheriff's Office administrative fee and any towing and
storage charges.

(d) A security interest holder in the vehicle is not required to comply with (a) and (b) and
may obtain release by paying the administrative fee, towing and storage fees.

502.9   RECORDS
Records Section members shall ensure that pertinent data regarding a towed vehicle is promptly
entered into the appropriate database.

502.9.1   VEHICLE STORAGE REPORT
Office members towing a vehicle shall complete a vehicle tow report. The report should be
submitted to the Records Section as soon as practicable after the vehicle is towed._

502.9.2   NOTICE AFTER TOW
Within 48 hours, excluding weekends and holidays, of a vehicle being towed, it shall be the
responsibility of the Records Section to send a notice of tow to all registered owners and others
having a recorded interest in the vehicle. Notice shall be sent to all such individuals by certified
mail. The notice shall include (ORS 819.180):

(a) That the vehicle has been taken into custody and towed; the identity of the appropriate
towing authority; and the statute, ordinance, or rule under which the vehicle has been
taken into custody and towed.

(b) The location of the vehicle, or the telephone number and address of the authority that
will provide that information.

(c) That the vehicle is subject to towing and storage charges, the amount of charges that
have accrued to the date of the notice, and the daily storage charges.

(d) That the vehicle and its contents are subject to a lien for payment of the towing and
storage charges, and that the vehicle and its contents will be sold to cover the charges
if the charges are not paid by a date specified by the appropriate authority.

(e) That the owner, possessor, or person having an interest in the vehicle and its contents
is entitled to a prompt hearing to contest the validity of taking the vehicle into custody

EXHIBIT A



Polk County Sheriff's Office
PCSO Policy Manual

Vehicle Towing

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/20, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Polk County Sheriff's Office

Vehicle Towing - 5

and towing it, and to contest the reasonableness of the charges for towing and storage
if a hearing is requested in a timely manner.

(f) The time within which a hearing must be requested and the method for requesting a
hearing.

(g) That the vehicle and its contents may be immediately reclaimed by presentation to
the appropriate authority of satisfactory proof of ownership or right to possession, and
either payment of the towing and storage charges or the deposit of cash security or a
bond equal to the charges with the appropriate authority._

EXHIBIT A



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director 

DATE: 10/23/2024 

SUBJECT: Andy Riggs Road Speed Zone Change 

Wednesday: Consent Calendar 
10/23/2024 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board approves Order No. 24-14 to establish a permanent speed zone with 
appropriate signage on Andy Riggs Road. 

ISSUE: 
A speed zone investigation has been performed by Polk County Public Works. The speed 
zone recommendation following the investigation is 3 5 MPH. 

BACKGROUND: 
The existing speed of the section investigated is currently basic rule of 55 MPH. 

DISCUSSION: 
Local residents requested the change due to excessive traffic speeds and safety concerns 
in the area. In 2015 the gravel segment of Andy Riggs Road was paved which 
consequently increased travel speeds along the roadway. 

SUMMARY: 
By approving Order No. 24-14, Andy Riggs Road will have a posted speed of35 MPH 
on its entire length of 1.09 miles from Fire Hall Road to end of county road. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
The estimated fiscal impact will be less than $1200 including labor, equipment, and 
materials to erect the signs. 



 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

 7 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 8 

POLK COUNTY, OREGON 9 

 10 

In the Matter of Imposing ) 11 

Speed Restrictions on  ) 12 

Andy Riggs Road  ) 13 

 14 

ORDER NO. 24-14 15 

 16 

WHEREAS, Polk County conducted a Speed Study of Andy Riggs Road by delegated authority 17 

under ORS 810.180 (5) (f); and  18 

 19 

WHEREAS, the results of said study recommended that a new speed zone be established at 35 20 

MPH from Fire Hall Road to end of county road at MP 1.09 on Andy Riggs Road; and 21 

 22 

WHEREAS, the Polk County Board of Commissioners is authorized to direct Public Works to 23 

post speed limit signs in the affected area; now, therefore 24 

  25 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Public Works shall erect speed limit signs on Andy Riggs 26 

Road in accordance with this Order. 27 

 28 

Dated this 23rd day of October 2024, at Dallas, Oregon. 29 

 30 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

______________________________________ 35 

Craig Pope, Chair 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

_____________________________________ 40 

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 

_____________________________________ 45 

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 46 

 47 

 48 

 49 

Approved as to Form: 50 

 51 

 52 

 53 

__________________ 54 

 55 

County Counsel 56 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren Rivera  Phone Number (Ext):  2550 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  October 23, 2024 

 Contractor Name:  Northwest Human Services 

 Address:  681 Center Street NE 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97301 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2024  Through:  June 30, 2025 

 Contract Amount:  $15,247.50 

 Background: 

 Northwest Human Services has agreed to provide Crisis and Informational Hotline services to Polk 
 County individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This agreement is a continuation of services Northwest Human Services has been providing Polk 
 County individuals in the past fiscal years. Northwest Human Services provides crisis phone 
 coverage for Polk County Behavioral Health and acts as the dispatch center for Polk County Mobile 
 Crisis Intervention Team outside of regular clinic operating hours. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract and the Behavioral Health budget was developed in anticipation of this agreement being in 
 place. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Northwest Human Services. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren Rivera  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 EIN#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  09/27/24 

 CONTRACTOR  NORTHWEST HUMAN SERVICES 
 681 CENTER STREET NE 
 SALEM, OR 97301 
 EIN#: 93-0605570 

 CONTACT PERSON:  STEPHEN GOINS 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Crisis and Informa�on Hotline services for Polk 
 County Behavioral Health as outlined in Exhibit B: Scope of 
 Work. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2024 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M25

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  $15,247.50 max 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 24-171

mailto:HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us


 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 EIN#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 NORTHWEST HUMAN SERVICES 
 681 CENTER STREET NE 

 SALEM, OR 97301 
 EIN#: 93-0605570 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2024,  and  ending  June  30,  2025,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  per  occurrence  and  three 
 million  dollars  ($3,000,000)  in  the  aggregate.  In  the  event  of  unilateral  cancella�on 
 or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance  policy  referred 
 to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the  County  verbally  and 
 in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 iii.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 iv.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 [REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 10 





 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  NORTHWEST HUMAN SERVICES 

 1.  DEFINITIONS 
 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any  and 
 all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA  Privacy  Rule.  1 

 Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon,  shall  be  referred  as 
 “COUNTY” and Northwest Human Services shall be referred to as “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than  as 
 permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health Informa�on not provided for by this BA Agreement of which it becomes aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and  condi�ons 
 that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to  such 
 informa�on. 

 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access,  at 
 the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the  COUNTY 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the  requirements  under 
 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including  policies 
 and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and  disclosure  of 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by  CONTRACTOR  on 
 behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary  of  the  Department  of 
 Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed  between  the  COUNTY  and 
 CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for  purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining 
 the COUNTY’S compliance with the Privacy Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  and 
 informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to  respond 
 to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and  manner 
 necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance  with  sec�on 
 2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a  request  by  an 
 Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in 
 accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR 
 Except as otherwise limited in this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose 
 Protected Health Informa�on to perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of 
 the COUNTY as specified in the Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided 
 that such use or disclosure would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the 
 minimum necessary policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY 

 A.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  limita�on(s)  in  the  No�ce  of  Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of  the  COUNTY  in  accordance  with  45  CFR  §  164.520,  to  the  extent  that  such 
 limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 13 



 B.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  changes  in,  or  revoca�on  of,  permission  by 
 Individual  to  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  to  the  extent  that  such 
 changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  restric�on  to  the  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  that  the  COUNTY  has  agreed  to  in  accordance  with  45  CFR 
 §  164.522,  to  the  extent  that  such  restric�on  may  affect  CONTRACTOR’S  use  or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY 
 The  COUNTY  shall  not  request  CONTRACTOR  to  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 in  any  manner  that  would  not  be  permissible  under  the  Privacy  Rule  if  done  by  the  COUNTY 
 except  if  such  use  or  disclosure  is  permi�ed  under  the  Agreement  between  the  COUNTY  and 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION 

 A.  Term  .  This  BA  Agreement  shall  be  effec�ve  as  of  July  01,  2024,  and  shall  terminate  when 
 all  of  the  Protected  Health  Informa�on  provided  by  the  COUNTY  to  CONTRACTOR,  or 
 created  or  received  by  CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY,  is  destroyed  or  returned 
 to  the  COUNTY,  or,  if  it  is  infeasible  to  return  or  destroy  Protected  Health  Informa�on, 
 protec�ons  are  extended  to  such  informa�on,  in  accordance  with  the  termina�on 
 provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on  for  Cause  .  Upon  the  COUNTY’S  knowledge  of  a  material  breach  by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide  an  opportunity  for  CONTRACTOR  to  cure  the  breach  without  the 
 interven�on  of  the  COUNTY  within  the  �meline  specified  in  Sec�on  III  (P)  of  the  Polk 
 County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide  an  opportunity  for  CONTRACTOR  to  terminate  this  BA  Agreement  and  the 
 Polk  County  Agreement  within  the  �meline  specified  in  Sec�on  III  of  the  Polk  County 
 Agreement.  At  the  direc�on  of  its  Board  of  Directors,  the  COUNTY  may  terminate 
 this  BA  Agreement  and  the  Polk  County  Agreement  as  permi�ed  in  Sec�on  III  of  the 
 Polk  County  Agreement  if  CONTRACTOR  has  not  cured  the  breach  upon  conclusion  of 
 the  technical  assistance  and  correc�ve  ac�on  described  in  paragraph  (i.)  of  this 
 sec�on; or 

 14 



 iii.  If  neither  termina�on  nor  cure  is  feasible,  the  COUNTY  shall  report  the  viola�on  to 
 the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except  as  provided  in  paragraph  (ii.)  of  this  sec�on,  upon  termina�on  of  this  BA 
 Agreement,  for  any  reason,  CONTRACTOR  shall  return  or  destroy  all  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  received  from  the  COUNTY,  or  created  or  received  by  CONTRACTOR  on 
 behalf  of  the  COUNTY.  This  provision  shall  apply  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  that 
 is  in  the  possession  of  subcontractors  or  agents  of  CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR  shall 
 retain no copies of the Protected Health Informa�on. 

 ii.  In  the  event  that  CONTRACTOR  determines  that  returning  or  destroying  the 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  is  infeasible,  CONTRACTOR  shall  provide  to  the 
 COUNTY  wri�en  no�fica�on  of  the  condi�ons  that  make  return  or  destruc�on 
 infeasible.  Upon  wri�en  acknowledgement  by  the  COUNTY  that  the  return  or 
 destruc�on  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  is  infeasible,  CONTRACTOR  shall  extend 
 the  protec�ons  of  this  BA  Agreement  to  such  Protected  Health  Informa�on  and  limit 
 further  uses  and  disclosures  of  such  Protected  Health  Informa�on  to  those  purposed 
 that  make  the  return  or  destruc�on  infeasible,  for  so  long  as  CONTRACTOR  maintains 
 such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS 

 A.  Regulatory  References  .  References  in  this  BA  Agreement  to  the  Privacy  Rule  or  any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as amended. 

 B.  Amendment  .  The  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  agree  to  take  such  ac�on  as  is  necessary  to 
 amend  this  BA  Agreement  from  �me  to  �me  as  is  necessary  for  the  COUNTY  to  comply 
 with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  .  The  respec�ve  rights  and  obliga�ons  of  CONTRACTOR  under  Sec�on  6.C  of  this 
 BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  Interpreta�on  .  Any  ambiguity  in  this  BA  Agreement  shall  be  resolved  to  permit  the 
 COUNTY  to  comply  with  the  Privacy  Rule.  In  the  event  of  any  inconsistency  between  the 
 provisions  of  this  BA  Agreement  and  the  mandatory  provisions  of  the  Privacy  Rule,  the 
 Privacy  Rule  shall  control.  Where  laws  in  the  State  of  Oregon  or  other  federal  law  is 
 more  stringent  than  the  Privacy  Rule,  the  more  stringent  Oregon  or  federal  law  shall 
 control. 

 15 



 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE 

 A.  Background  Requirement  :  The  COUNTY,  in  accordance  with  §  164.306  and  §  164.308  (b), 
 may  permit  the  CONTRACTOR  to  create,  receive,  maintain,  or  transmit  Electronic 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  on  the  COUNTY’S  behalf  only  if  the  COUNTY  obtains 
 sa�sfactory  assurances,  in  accordance  with  §  164.314(a)  that  the  CONTRACTOR  will 
 appropriately  safeguard  the  informa�on.  The  COUNTY  must  document  the  sa�sfactory 
 assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part  I.  Security  Assurances  :  The  CONTRACTOR  will  Implement  administra�ve,  physical, 
 and  technical  safeguards  that  reasonably  and  appropriately  protect  the  confiden�ality, 
 integrity,  and  availability  of  the  electronic  protected  health  informa�on  that  it  creates, 
 receives,  maintains,  or  transmits  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  as  required  by  the  Health 
 Insurance  Portability  and  Accountability  Act  of  1996  and  the  requirements  of  Health 
 Insurance Reform, the Security Standards (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  SUBCONTRACTOR,  to  whom  it  provides  such 
 informa�on,  agrees  to  implement  reasonable  and  appropriate  safeguards  to  protect 
 it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize  termina�on  of  the  contract  by  the  COUNTY,  if  the  COUNTY  determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part  II.  Other  arrangements:  When  the  COUNTY  and  the  CONTRACTOR  are  both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It  enters  into  a  memorandum  of  understanding  with  the  CONTRACTOR  that  contains 
 terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If  the  CONTRACTOR  is  required  by  law  to  perform  a  func�on  or  ac�vity  on  behalf  of  the 
 COUNTY  or  to  provide  a  service  described  in  the  defini�on  of  CONTRACTOR  as  specified 
 in  §  160.103  of  the  regula�on  to  the  COUNTY,  the  COUNTY  may  permit  the 

 16 



 CONTRACTOR  to  create,  receive,  maintain,  or  transmit  Electronic  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  on  its  behalf  to  the  extent  necessary  to  comply  with  the  legal  mandate 
 without  mee�ng  the  requirements  of  Part  I.,  although  the  COUNTY  will  a�empt  in  good 
 faith  to  obtain  sa�sfactory  assurances  as  required  by  Part  I.  (A),  and  will  document  the 
 a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon,  shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and, 
 NORTHWEST  HUMAN  SERVICES,  hereina�er  called  “CONTRACTOR”  hereby  agree  to  the 
 following: 

 1.  PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

 CONTRACTOR  provides  a  Crisis  and  Informa�on  Hotline,  which  is  staffed  24  hours  per  day,  7 
 days  per  week  with  Crisis  Interven �on  Workers  who  are  specially  trained  to  respond  to  any  crisis 
 situa�on  including  suicide,  depression,  child  abuse  and  substance  abuse.  There  are  no  fees  to 
 individuals or wai�ng lists for services.  Crisis Interven�on is immediately available. 

 2.  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

 CONTRACTOR agrees to perform the following to COUNTY: 

 A.  Answer  all  calls  from  Polk  County  residents  or  agencies  to  the  Crisis  and  Informa�on 
 Hotline  24  hours  per  day,  7  days  per  week.  There  is  no  minimum  or  maximum  number  of 
 calls monthly under this Agreement. 

 B.  Priori�ze  calls  by  Polk  County  residents  by  call  type  to  ensure  callers  connect  with  the 
 appropriate  Crisis  Interven�on  Worker  to  meet  their  needs,  including  those  when 
 interac�on point is started through the 988 system. 

 C.  Perform  crisis  interven�on,  crisis  counseling  and  referrals  to  all  calls  received  as 
 appropriate. 

 D.  Act  as  dispatch  center  for  COUNTY  Mobile  Crisis  Interven�on  Team  (MCIT)  as 
 appropriate  and  provide  an  evalua�on  of  the  caller's  need  including  a  descrip�on  of  the 
 presen�ng  problem,  current  symptoms,  risk  factors  and  other  direc�ons  as  appropriate 
 at the �me of request to MCIT. 

 E.  Provide support to COUNTY clients accessing the Crisis and Informa�on Hotline who 
 have an established safety and recovery plan as shared or guided by COUNTY staff as 
 appropriate. 

 F.  Provide  daily call reports with the date and �me of ini�al call, the call originator, 
 involved individual, crisis worker page, �me paged and �me crisis worker responded to 
 aid in follow up care at both intercep�on points through the 988 system and the Crisis 
 and Informa�on Hotline. 

 18 



 G.  Provide  fully  customized  data  reports  with  detailed  informa�on  on  u�liza�on,  needs, 
 interven�ons  provided,  demographics,  and  outcomes  within  30  days  a�er  the  end  of  the 
 preceding month. 

 3.  RATES 

 COUNTY  agrees  to  pay  CONTRACTOR  once  a  quarter  at  the  rate  of  $3,811.87  with  a  not  to 
 exceed amount of $15,247.50 per year for services rendered. 

 19 




